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NYSERDA’s Written Responses to Questions from Bidders

Posted Tuesday, April 28, 2015
The responses below (in italics) are meant to assist prospective Bidders in understanding the requirements, terms, and conditions of RFP 3084 and the RPS Standard Form Contract (Attachments G and H to the RFP). 

1. Please provide clarification on what an "RPS Attributes" or “REC” is?

NYSERDA will buy the RPS Attributes or “RECs” from the bid facilities that are awarded contracts.  RPS Attributes are a defined term in the RFP. As described in Section III of RFP 3084, NYSERDA will not purchase energy or capacity. All anticipated energy and/or capacity revenues should be considered separate revenues to Seller, above and apart from the amount to be paid by NYSERDA for RPS Attributes. Electricity Delivery Requirements are covered in XXI of RFP. There is no requirement for any pre-arrangements for the sale of energy.

2. Are fuel cell projects eligible and has NYSERDA awarded a fuel cell project under RPS? 

Yes there were fuel cell awards through the 8th Main Tier solicitation. Please see the RPS Annual Performance Report for more information:  http://www.nyserda.ny.gov/-/media/Files/Publications/PPSER/NYSERDA/2015-RPS-Annual-report.pdf
3. Under this RFP, would Solar PV projects be classified as Class 1 or Class 2? 

For the purpose of this RFP, Solar PV facilities are classified as Class 2. Please review the definitions of Class 1 and 2 Bid Facilities as described in Section XXVII of RFP 3084. 
4. Is a Grid System Queue Number required for Provisional Certification if the Facility is not yet operational?
A queue number is not required for Provisional Certification.
5.  Is there any leeway in amending the standard form contract once a bid is accepted?
NYSERDA will consider requests for limited, nonmaterial changes. Any requested change must be identified at the time a Bid Proposal is submitted, and will be considered during the contracting process.

6. Are Bid Facilities in separate geographical locations allowed to be combined into one package and submitted by the same company?
No, RFP 3084 requires a separate application and bid from each Bid Facility. 
7.  Can Bid Facilities that are Class 2 compete for the funding in different pricing levels or is it an equal playing field?

The RFP specifies evaluation criteria in Section XII. 70% weighting is applied to the Bid Price Evaluation Metric and 30% to New York Economic Benefits. Section XXI.B.  describes the Bid Price Evaluation Metric as it applies to both Class 1 and Class 2 Bid Facilities. 
8. Can you provide a sample calculation for the value of initial contract security for a 500 kW (0.5 MW) project?

Initial Contract Security is calculated by multiplying the Bid Quantity, in MWh times $6. For example, a 0.5 MW project with a capacity factory of 25%, offered with a Bid Quantity Percentage of 95% would provide an annual Bid Quantity of 1,040 MWh (rounded to whole MWh). Initial Contract Security would be calculated as 1,040 MWh multiplied by $6/MWh, or $6,240. Any additional Contract Security that becomes due (see Sections XV (C) and (D)) will be calculated in the same manner using the appropriate payment per MWh. Please refer to Section XV of RFP 3084.
9. Section 8.01 specifies a restriction on assignment, subject to the express written consent of NYSERDA, not to be unreasonably withheld. Would NYSERDA consider carve-outs to such restrictions for transfers to affiliates and sales of the Bid Facility to third parties, assuming the Contract Security stays in effect or is adequately replaced? 
Article VIII of the RPS Standard Form Contract provides circumstances under which NYSERDA approval may or may not be required. Consent will not be unreasonably withheld under any circumstance. 
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